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JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Introduction

The Directors present the Strategic report and Financial Statement for the period ended 31 December
2018,

Business review

Jonas Computing (UK} Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) are wholly owned subsidiaries of
Constellation Software Inc. a Canadian company listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange ("TSX").

As a wholly owned subsidiary, the Group benefits from the operational and financial support of its
ultimate parent and intermediate parent company, Gary Jonas Computing Lid {"Jonas"). Jonas
Software is the leading provider of enterprise management software solutions to the Club, Leisure
Fitness and Sports, Salon and Spa, Foodservice. Construction, Attractions. Metai Service Cenires.
Moving and Storage, Education, Holel and Hosptality Camps. Event Management.
Radiology/Laboratory Information Systems., Consumer Product Licensing. Payment Processing.
Dynamic Case Management and Retail industries.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Retait

Competitive pressure in all regions of the UK is a continuing risk for the Group, which could result in it
losing sales to its key competitors, To manage this risk, the Group stnves to provide added-value
products and services to its customers; prompt response times in the supply of products and services
and in the handling of customer queries; and through the maintenance of strong relationships with
Customers.

Fducation

Competitive pressures within the UK Education market remain and could result in the Group losing
some new sales and existing customers 1o key compettors. To manage this risk, the Group aims to
provide added-value products and excellent services to its customers and prompt response times in the
handling of customer queries. The Group reguiarly surveys its customers base to better understand
customer opinions and market trends.

Clup

Competitive pressures exist within the UK market arising out of the introduction of new product offerings
by competitors which has impacted on our market share at the lower end of the club spectrum. At the
middle and upper end, the Group continues to perform well securing new contracts and expending the
markets in which it operaies. Investments in the product offering continues tc make us an attractive
oplion and our financial stability is a strong benefit when tendering to the high end markel. We see
continued opportunities for growth in the expanding club industry and our strategic plan is for growth by
expansion in to new and developing markets. Since the EU referendum the weakening of the pound
sterling has caused additional costs for those who import consumables in {o the UK. this 1s expected to
affect their margins in the coming year.

The maijority of Springer-Miller Systems (SMS) customers are based in North America and as such.
ong of our biggest challenges with owr UK customers is them feehng a lack of attention from our
business relating te therr country specific needs. It is a shrinking market for SMS ang as such our
attenron levels are malching our expected rewrns from the markel. We continue to develop services
as an add on to our offering to secure existing customers and to atiract those operating in the market
that require a specific high end offering.




JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINVED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Paper

The directors have considered risks and uncertainties pertaining lo the Group and have identified
potential increased competition and exchange rate fluctuations particularly in light of Brexit, as current
potential risk areas. However, the Group has continued to develop its product offerings in order to
maintain a competitive advantage, and actively assess how currency nsk can be mitigaled and take
action accordingly.

Health & L eisure

The Health & Leisure group's core client base of local authority funded service providers (trusts.
contractors and direct service organisations) are experiencing reductions in traditional government
funding as austerity measures and budget culs bite harder. This will continue to force existing clients o
test for market value and seek fee reductions from all service providers.

In paraliel {o the changes on the customer side of the market, TRP and EZ Facility UK are seeing rapidiy
increasing competition. A plan to diversify and create a range of products over the last 3-4 years has
progressed well and TRP can now offer a suite of products. However, for each part of that suite there
are a range of competitars who are specialists in that paricular area meaning TRP competes on many
fronts against many other businesses. EZ Facility are focussed on providing added-value services to
its customers. prompt response times in the supply of services and handling of customers queries and
building even stronger relationships with customers.

New opportunities in the market for Cap2 are reducing and so the need to diversify becomes ever more
important — particularly in other areas/sports. Strategic alliances within the sector will help to overcome
this, as well as diversifying the use of the product in the new few years.

Salon
The Group operates within an extremely competitive environment. There are many competitors with
lower cost offerings and the cost of entry into the market is relatively low.

The Group's products and offerings need to remain current and relevant to the needs of our market, the
Group has a history of predicting and leading develooments in the market.

Payment Processing

The Group operates within a competitive market, however by developing its products, infrastructure and
customer service the Company is in an excellent position to retain customers and develop the business
revenue streams.

Metals

The impact of Brexit short term has seen pressures on the Steel Industry due to rising import costs.
leading 1o company closures and consolidation, Tata steel in particular have divested heavily. On the
upside investments by Greybull and Liberty has seen capacity saved and with continued price
increases. meant that the sector has been performing positively with hugher than predicted investment
in Information Systems which has lead to good UK sales in smaller systems for the company. The long
term UK future 15 still very uncertain and the continued low prnice of Gas and Oil has meant a reduction
in Investment in this important Market, leading to a number of high picfile projects being put on hold.
This further strengthens the argument for the allocation of resources to the rest of world market for the
future of the business.




JONAS COMPUTING {UK) LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Financial key performance indicators

In alignment with group policy, the Company considers its Key Performance Indicators ("KPIs") to be
those which drive shareholder value, namely Growth in Gross Profit ("GGP") and Profitability.

2018 2017 2016
Growth in Gross Profit 17.0% 22.9% n/a
Profit before exceptional items and taxation 6.985.652 5,682 150 11.162,104

In addition to the above KPIs, the Group also pays close aftention to its net current assets posilion.
Jonas requires that the Group is party to a central corporate treasury function which allows the group
to centrally manage its liquidity and financial risks whilst ensuring capital is depioyed globally in the
most effective manner. However, this can mean that locally the financial strength of the Group is not
necessarily conveyed by the net current asset position when reading these financial statements in
isolation. To fully understand the size and strength of the corporate group of which the Group is a part.
these financial statements should be read in conjunction with those of Constellation Software Inc.

Future developments

Relail

The Group continues to invest in its product range with new innovative features as well as developing
new products to differentiate its offering and also to explore additional routes to market and strengthen
existing working relationships with other related parties within the group, thus providing significant
confidence of future sales growth through diversification of customers,

Education

The Group continues to invest in its product range with new innovative features as well as developing
new products to differentiate its offering. These new products are designed 1o creale new revenue
streams for the company and drive future growth.

Ciub

The Group continues to invest in its product range with new innovative features as well as developing
new products to differentiate its offering. These features and products are designed to ensure the
retention of existing customers, the creation of new revenue streams for the company and driving future
growth through expansion in to new and developing markets. The Company will continue to acquire
new companies on behalf of the group.

Health & Leisure
The Group now operates under 4 different divisions, and as such, faces a more diverse range of future
developments. These are summarised beiow:

TRP will continue to operate as # has been doing, with a future focus on building an even more
competitive suite of customer experience management tools and adding to its distribution network to
sell into new markets.

Cap?2 is still seeing solid growth despite the cnsat of competitors slowly reaching the market. With this
in mind additional commercial modules and bolt-ons are being built to support the growth and aide
retention rates  International expansion is possible over the next 18 months via strategic partnerships
A new location for Cap2's office base is planned to support the future predicted growth.




JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Health & Leisure (continued)
EZ Facility continues to work and improve the products they offer with regular system updates and
larger development mprovements, as well as adding 10 integrated pariners.

Xn Leisure will continue o operate as it has been doing with a future focus on developing online
services which have more functional depth.

Salon
The Group will continue to operate as it has been doing, with a future fecus on developing better online
services and mobile applications which have more functional depth.

Paymenl Processing

The Group continues to invest in its product range with new mnovative features as well as developing
new products to differentiate its offering. These new products are designed to create new revenue
streams for the company and drive future growth.

Metals

The 7% improvement in distributed steel consumption has lead to much higher activity in this market
and currently we are seeing a high level of interest in the Group's products i the USA. We have also
seen enquires from rest of world countries and this falls in fine with our pians to develop this market as
a sustainable growth sector.

This report was approved by the board on f 0/’ 2/ { ':1 and signed an its behalf.

sns;mad .
Director




JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The Directors present their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal activities
The principal activity of the Company was that of a holding company. The principal activity of the Group
was the provision of computer software and consuitancy services.

Directors
The directors who heid office during the period and up to the date of signature of the financial statements
were as follows.

8 Symons (resigned 31 October 2018, appointed 1 January 2019)
J R MacKinnon {resigned 31 October 2018, appointed 1 January 2019}
S R Saklad {appointed 1 November 2018}
D P Boxall (appointed 1 November 2018)
R Clancy {appointed 1 November 2018)

Results and dividends
The results for the period are set out on page 11.

Ordinary dividends of £14,433,526 (2017 - £9,863,329) were paid. The directors do not recommend
payment of a final dividend (2017 - £nii).

Going concern

The consolidated financial stalements have been prepared on the going concern basis which assumes
that the Group will continue in operationat existence for the foreseeable future. The directors have
reviewed the working capital requirements of the group for a period of at least 12 months from the
anticipated date of signing of the financial statements and are satisfied that the Group will be able to
meet ils liabilities as they fall due.

Auditors
The auditors. Grant Thornton UK LLP, will be proposed for reappointment with section 485 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Strategic Report

The Directors have chosen in accordance with section 414C(11) of the Companies Act 2006 to include
in the Strategic Repon matters otherwise required to be disclosed in the Directors’ Report as the
directors consider these are of strategic importance to the company.




JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 o

Statement of disclosure to auditors
So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors

are unaware. Additionaily. the directors have taken all the necessary steps that they ought to have
taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of all relevant audit information and to establish
that the company's audilors are aware of that information.

On behalf of? the board

S R Saklad
Director
ez lia




JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN THE PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report. Directors’ Report and the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and Company financial statements for each
financial year The directors have elected under company law to prepare group financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {"IFRS") as adopted by the European
Union ("EU") and have elected o prepare the company financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including FRS 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework’
{United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law).

The group financial statements are required by law and IFRS adopted by the EU to present fairly the
financial position and performance of the group, the Companies Act 2006 provides in refation to such
financial statements that references in the relevant par of that Act to financial statements giving a true
and fair view are references to their achieving a fair presentation.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the company and of the profit
or loss of the group for that period.

In preparing each of the group and company financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently.
- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

- for the group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accorgance with
IFRSs adopted by the EU and for the company financial statements state whether applicable
UK accounling standards have been followed, subject to any material depariures disclosed and
explained in the company financial statement;

- prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless ¢ is inappropriate to
presume that the group and the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adeqguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the group’s and the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the group and the company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the group and the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JONAS
COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED

Opinion

We have audiled the financial statements of Jonas Computing (UK) Limited (the parent company’) and
its subsidiaries (the 'group’) for the year ended 31 December 2018, which comprise which comprises
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. the Consclidated Statement of Financial
Position, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows,
the Parent company Statement of Financial Position, the Parent company Statement of Changes in
Equity and notes lo the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied s their preparation is applicable law and
international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards
the parent company financial statements, Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure
Framework' and the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinon:
» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent

company’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of the group's profit for the year then ended,
s the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as

adopted by the European Union;
» the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with FRS
101; and
« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 20086.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilties under those standards are further described i the 'Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements' section of our report. VWe are independent of
the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethicat requirements that are relevant to ouwr
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard. and we have fulfilled
our cther ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have cblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nolhing 1o report in respect of the following matters in refation to which the ISAs (UK) require
us to report to you where:

* the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

« the directors have not gisclosad in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the
date when the financial statements are authorised for Issue




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JONAS
COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED

Other information

The directors are responsible for the olher information. The other information comprises the information
included n the annual report. other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our
opinion on the financial siatements does not cover the other information and, except 1o the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the iinancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so. consider whether the other information 1s materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent matenal misstalemenis, we are required to
determine whether there is a malerial misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If. based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there
is a material misstaternent of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion. based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the directors report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements: and

» the strategic report and the direclors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable
legat requirements.

Matter on which we are required to report under the Companies Act 2006

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and #ts
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the
strategic report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you if in our opinion:

s adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate
for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us. or

» the parent company financial statements are not in agreement w:ith the accounting records and
returns: or

= cenain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are nct mads or

+ we have nol received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JONAS
COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement sel out on page 7, the dwectors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view. and for such internal control as the directors determnine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free freom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
efrror,

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the
parent company's ability io continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor’s responsibllities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staterments as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a matenal misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.ukfauditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. QOur audil work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those matters we are required 1o state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work. for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

C/:-‘)/{—zom’t:m Uk P

Amanda James

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thomton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Southampton

Date 10 December 2019

-10-



JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Other operating income

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Olher comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

for the year

Notes
4
5

1

2018
£

£63.232 547

(6.604,393)

56.628.154

{49.164,551)
31.686

7.495.289

328

{509.965)

6,985,662

(1.696,341)

5.289.311

45 814

5,335,125

2017
£

56,467.211

{8.075.266)

48,391,945

(42,232 .826)
20.697

6.179.816

143
(587.809)

6,592,150

{879,382)
4,712,768

187,604

4 500.372

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

-11-



JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Company Registration No. 05301607

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Goodwill
Other intangible assels
Contract assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Contract assets

Trade and cther receivables
Deferred tax assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assefs

Total assots

LIABWITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Deferred income

Total non-current habiities

Current liabllities
Borrowings

Trade and cther payables
Current tax habilibes
Deferred income
Deferred tax kabilities

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

Notes

13

15

17
18
19

20

20
21

23

As at 1
January
2018 2017 2017
£ £ £
3,853,900 1,330,829 1,011,545
7,024 571 6,662,908 5,073,245
28,440,999 19,639,197 16,068.413
703.652 - -
40,023,122 27,632,634 22,153,203
1,134,198 1,427,240 1,131,127
214,036 - -
62,015,025 41,357,828 32,065,906
404,094 333837 302,570
4 635 879 2,818,583 3,110,225
68,403,232 45,937,288 36,609,828
108.426.354 73.569,922 58,763,031
(4,727,287) (4,702.836) (4,74B8.617)
{528.010) - -
(5.255,297) (4,702,838) {4.748.617)
(677,414) {799,137) {117.808)
(69,346,052) (38,211,505} (25,837 .414)
(2,121,807 (1,496,111) {2.369,064)
(14,365,133) {12,913,353) (12,750,308}
(4.772,352) {2,058,702) (388,585)
(91,282,558) (55,478,808} (41,463,179)
(96,537.855) (60,181,644) {46,211,796)
11,888,499 12,551,235

13,388 278

12



JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED

Company Registration No. 05301607

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

As at1
January
2018 2017 2017
Notes £ £ £
EQUITY
Called-up share capitai 25 1 1 1
Share premium account 16,869,737 16,859,737 16.859.737
Capital contribution 12,655,000 5,800,000 -
Retained eamings (17.626,239) (2,271,460) (4.308.503)
Total equity 11,888,499 13.388.278 12,551,235

The financial stateme ts O pages 11 to 53 were approved by the Board of Drrectors and authorised

forissue on _q..  AO/1 2, !

SR Saklag
Director

. and are signed on its behalf by.

The accompanying accounting palicies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

13-
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JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Notes

Operating activities

Cash generated from operations 27
Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of subsidiaries (net of cash
acquired)

Interast received

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Capital contribution

Dividends paid to owners of the parent
company

Payment of obligations under finance
leases

Net cash used in financing activities

Net mcreasef{decrease) in cash and cash
equivaients
Cash and cash equivalents at 1January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31
December 2018

Cash and cash equivalents per the
statement of financial position

Less bank overdrafts

Cash and cash eguivalents for the
statement of cash flows purpose

2018

24,307,393
(509,965)

{1,694, 448)

22,102,880

(406.053)

(14,593.378)
328

(14,999,103}

6.855.000
{12,044 309)

(36,405)

1,878,163
2,144 382

4.022.545

4.635.879

{613.349;

4022 545

(5.225,714)

2017

16,185,410
{587,809)

(2.115,024)

13,482 577

(630,729;
(15,000}

(9.630,666)
143

(10,276,252)

5.800.000
(9.8€63,329)

(108,839)

(4.172,188)

{965,843)
3,110,225

2,144,382

2,818.583
{674.201)

2,144,382

The accompanying accounting polictes and notes form an integral pan of the financial statements.

-15.



JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

General information

Jonas Computing (UK} Limited ("the Company’) is a privale company limited by shares and
incorporated and domiciled in England. The address of the Company's registered office and principail
place of business is Gladstone House. Hithercroft Road, Wallingford, Oxfordshire, OX10 98T.

The principal activity of Jonas Computing (UK) Limited. together with its subsidiaries ("the Group™), is
the provision of computer software and consultancy services,

The Group is ultimately controlied by Constellation Software Inc. incorporated and domiciled in Canada.
which holds 100% of the crdinary shares of Jonas Computing (UK) Limited

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (‘IFRS™) and IFRS Imempretation Committee inlerpretations (‘IFRS ICT), as
adopted by the European Union. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention in
accordance with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 that are applicable to cornpanies that prepare
consolidated financial slatemenrts in accordance with IFRS.

For periods from 31 December 2019 up to and including the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
prepared its financial statements in accordance with UK generally accepted accounting practice (UK
GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 are the first since 31 August
2009 that the Group has prepared in accordance with IFRS. Refer to note 2 for information on how the
Group adopted IFRS.

The consclidaled financial statements comprise a statement of comprehansive income, a statement of
financial position, a statement of changes in equily, a statement of cash flows. and notes. Transactions
with the owners of the Group in their capacity as owners are recognised in the statement of changes in
equity.

The Group presents the statement of comprehensive income using the classification by function of
expenses. The Group believes this method provides more useful information to the users of ils financial
statements as it better reflects the way operations are run from a business point of view. The statement
of financial position format is based on a current / non-current distinction.

Measurement bases

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
Hsstorical cost is generally based on the Fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assels.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in compliance with adopted IFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates and management judgements in applying the accounting
policies. The significant estimates and judgements have been made and their effeclis disclosed in note
1.
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JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Basis of congolidation

The consolidated financial statements incomporate those of Jonas Computing (UK} Limited and all of ds
subsidiaries (i.e. entities that the Group controls through ils power to govern the financial and operating
policias 50 as to obtain economic benefits).

All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated on consolidation. Urnvealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Where necessary, adjustments are made o the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the
accounting policies used into fine with those used by other members of the Group.

Going concarn

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis which assumes
that the Group will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The directors have
reviewed the working capital requirements of the group for a period of at least 12 months from the
anticipated date of signing of the financial statements and are satisfied that the Group will be able to
meet its liabilties as they fall due.

Foreign and functional currencies

lterns included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates (‘the functional currency’). The functional currency of the
Group is Sterling (£). The financial statemenis are presented in Sterling, this being the currency of the
economic environment of the Group. Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to
the nearest £1.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreigh exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settiement of such transactions and from the transiatbion at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilties denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Revenue

Revenue represents the amount the Group expects to receive for products and services in its contracts
with customers, ne! of discounts and VAT. The Group recognises revenue under four revenue
categories being, License, Hardware and other. Professional services. and Maintenance and other
recurring revenue. Software license revenue is compnsed of non-recurring license fees charged for the
uge of software products icensed under multiple-year or perpetual arrangements. Professional service
revenue consists of fees charged for implementation services, custom programming, product training
and consulting. Hargware and other revenue inclugdes the resale of thid party hardware as part of
customised solutions. as well as sales of hardware assembled internally and the rembursement of
travel costs. Maintenance and other recurring revenue primarily consists of fees charged for customes
support on software products post-delivery and also inctudes recurring fees derived from combined
software/support contracts, transaction revenues, managed services and hosted products.
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JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Revenue {continued)
Contracts with multiple products or services

Typicatly. the Group enters into contracis that contain multiple products and services such as software
licenses, hosted software-as-a-service, maintenance professional services, and hardware. The Group
evaluates these arrangements to determine the appropriate unit of accounting (performance obligation)
for revenue recognition puiposes based on whether the product or service is distinct from some or all
of the other products or services in the arrangement A product of service is distinct if the customer can
benefit from it on its own or together with other readily available resources and the Group's promise 1o
transfer the good or service is separaiely identifiable from other promeses i the comractus)
arrangemenl with the customer. Non-distingt producls and services are combined with other goods or
services until they are distinct as a bundie and therefore form a single performance obligation. Where
a contract consists of more than one performance obligation, ravenue ig allocated to each based on
their eslimated standalone seling price (SSP).

Nature of products and services

The Group sells on-premise software licenses on both a perpetual and specified-temn basis. Revenue
from the license of distinct software is recognised at the time that both the right-to-use the software has
commenced and the software has been made available to the customer. Cerain of the Group's
contracts with customers conlain provisions that require the customer to renew optional support and
maintenance in order to maintain the aclive right 1o use a perpetual or term license. The renewal
payments after the initial bundled support and maintenance term in these cases apply to both the
continued right-to-use the license and the support and maintenance renewal. Where the fees payabie
for the initial term are incremental to the fees for the renewal terms, the excess is treated as a
prepayment for expected renewals and allocated {amortised) evenly over the expecled customer
renewals, up to the estimated life of the software that is typically 4-6 years, Revenue from the license
of software that involves complex implementation or customisation that is not distinct, and/or includes
sales of hardware that is not distinct, is recognised as a2 combined performance obligation using the
percentage-of-completion method based sither on the achievement of contractually defined milestones
or based on labour hours,

A porlion of the Group's sales, categorised as hardware and other revenue. are accounted for as
product revenue. Product revenue is recognised when control of the product has transferred under the
terms of an enforceable contract.

Revenue related to the customer reimbursement of travel related expenses incurred during a project
implemantation where the Group 1s the pnincipal in the arrangement is included in the hardware and
other revenue category. Revenue is recognised as costs are incwred which is consistent with the period
in which the costs are invoiced. Reimbursable travel expenses incurred for which an invoice has not
been issued. are recarded as part of unbilled revenue on the statement of financial position.

Maintenance and other recurring revenue primarily consists of fees charged for customer support on
software products post-delivery and also includes, to a lesser extent, recurring fees derived from
software licenses that are not distinct from maintenance, transaction revenues. managed services. and
hosted products,

Revenue from software-as-a-service (SaaS) arrangements. which alfows customers fo use hosted
software over a ferm without taking possassion of the software. are provided on a subscription basis.
Revenue from the SaaS subscriplion. which includes the hosted software and maintenance is
recognised rateably over the term of ihe subscription. Significant incremental payments for SaaS in an
initial term are recognised rateably over the expected renewal periods. up to the estimated life of the
software.
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JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 34 DECEMBER 2018

Revenue (continued)

Professional services ravenue including nstallation, implementation, training and customeation of
software is recognised by the stage of compietion of the performance obligation determined using the
percentage of completion method noled above or as such services are performed as appropriate in the
crreumstances. The revenue and profit of fixed price contracts i recognised on a percentage of
completion basis when the outcome of a2 contract can be estimated rehably. When the cutcome of the
contract cannot be estimated reliably but the Company expects 10 recover its costs, the amount of
expected costs is treated as variable consideration and the transaction price is updated as more
information becomes known.

The timing of revenue recognition often differs from contract payment schedules, resulting in revenue
that has been eamed but not biled., These amounts are included in unbilled revenue. Amounts billed
in accordance with customer contracts. bui not yet earned, are recorded and presented as part of
deferred revenue.

Other income

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time-apportioned basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the
effective interest rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Alt property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly atiributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset. as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associaled with the item will flow lo
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. Ali other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which thay are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-ine method to allocate their cost amounts to their residual
values over their estimated usefuf fives, as follows:

Freehold property 50 years straight line

Leasshold improvements over the term of the lease or 100 years, whichever is
shorter

Fixtures and fittings 3-5 years straight line

Computer equipment 2-% years straight line

Motor vehicles 3.5 years straight line

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed. and adjusted if appropriate. at the end of
each reporting pericd. An asset’s carrying amount 15 written down immediately 1o its recoverable amount
if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within Administrative expenses’ in the statement of comprehensive income.




JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED

CONSOUDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not
indrvidually identified and separately recognised. Goodwill is camied at cost less accumulated
impairment losses

For impairment assessment purposes. assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating unds). As a resull, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is afiocated to
those cash-generating units that are expected to beneft from synergies of a related business
cembination and represent the lowest level within the Group at which management monitors goodwill.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acgquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment josses.

Amortisation is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets. other than goodwill, from the date that they are acquired and
avaitabie for use, since this most closely reflects the expected usage and pattern of consumption of the
future econamic benefits embodied in the asset. To determine the useful fife of the technology assets,
the Group considers the length of time over which it expects to eamn or recover the majority of the
present value of the forecasted cash flows of the related intangible assets. The estimated useful lives
for the current and comparative pencds are as follows:

Customer relationships 13-20% straight line
Intellectual property 17-25% straight line

impairment of intangible assets and property, pltant and equipment

At each reporting end date, the Group reviews the camrying amounts of its intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. if any such indication exists. the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment foss (if any). Where it is not possible fo
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset. the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the lime value of money and the risks specific to the asset
far which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit} is estimated to be less that its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impaimment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, uniess the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impaimment loss is treated as a revaluation decreasse.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carryng amount of the asset {or cash-generating
unit) is increased lo the revised eslimate of its recoverable amount, but s0 that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been deterrnined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset {or cash-generating unit) prior years A reversal of an impairment loss 15
recognised immediately in profit or loss, uniess the relevant asset s carned in at a revaiued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impaimment loss is lreated as a revaluation increase.
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JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

inventories

Inventories are carried in the consaolidated staterment of financial position at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a first-in first-out (FIFO) basis The cost of work in progress and
finished goods comprises materiais. direct labour and attnbutable production overheads based on
norral levels of activity.

Write-down 1s made for absclete and slow-moving items based on their expected future use and net
realisable value.Net realisable value is the estimaled sales price in the ordinary course of business after
allowing for all further costs of completion and disposal.

Borrowing costs

All botrowing costs are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the year in which they
ara incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Groups's statement of financial position
when the Group becomes 2 party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabiiities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial ligbilities {other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair vaiue through profit or foss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
aftributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
{FVTPL) are recognised immediately in protd or loss.

Financial assels

All financial assels are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a
financial asset is unger a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the
timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction
costs, except for those financial assets classified as at far value through profit or loss, which are initially
measured al fair value.

impairment of financial assets

Financial assets. other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each end of
reporting period. Financial assels are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more evants that occurred after the inttial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
fiows ot the investment have been affecled. Objective evidence of impairment couid include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty. or
. default or delinquency in iterest or principal payments: or
- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or financial re-organisation.
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JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Financial instruments (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impaitment on a coliective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's pasl experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period
of 60 days, as well as observable changes in natianal or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the differences between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interes! rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the mpairment loss directly for all financial
assels with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. When a trade receivable s considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit of loss.

If. in a subsequent periad, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
relaled objectively to an event occurring afler the mpairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

Reciassification of financial assels

Reclassification is only permitted in rare circumstances and where the asset is no longer held for the
purpose of selling in the short-term. In all cases. reclassifications of financial assets are limited to debt
instruments. Reclassifications are accounted for at the farr value of the financial asset at the date of
reclasstfication.
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JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial assel only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assel expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to ancther entity. If the Group neither fransfers nor retains substantially ali the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to cortrol the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay If the Group
retains substantiakty all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset. the Group
continues 1o recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain of loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety {(e.g. when the Group retains an option to
repurchase part of a lransferred asset). the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement. and the part it
no lenger recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
alfocated to it that had baen recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive mcome is allocated
betwesn the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabiiities and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial habilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equily instrument is any contract thal evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilibes Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received net of direct issue coslts.

Repurchase of the Group's own equity instrumants is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No
gain of loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's
own equity instruments,

Financial lisbiities
Financal liabilities are classfied as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL' or 'other financial liabilities'.
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JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Financial instruments (continued)

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measurad at amorticed cost using the effective interest
method, with interest expense recoghised on an effective yield basis.

The effective intarest method is a method of caiculating the amonrised cost of a financial hability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial kiability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recoghition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financia! liabilities when, and only when. the Group's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position includes cash in hand, deposits held
at calf with banks and cash equivalents. Bank accounts held which have an original matunty of more
than three months, or which are subject to significant restrictions over access, are not presented as
cash at bank and in hand. Such amounts are shown separately as short-termn investments or other
financial assets with appropriate disclosure of the related terms.

- 24 -



JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the pariod comprises current and deferred tax Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it refates to ilems recognised in other comprehensive income ar
directly in shareholders’ funds. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in shareholders’ funds. respectivety.

The current income tax charge is cakulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date in the counines where the Group operates and
generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect 1o situations in which applicable fax regulation is subject to interpretation. 1t establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amournts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
staternent, except to the extent that il relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in shareholders’ funds. In this case, the tax is ailso recogmsed in other comprehensive income
of directly in shareholders’ funds, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacled or subsiantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions 1aken n tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It estabhshes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected 1o be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probabie that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax is
recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their
carfrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to

apply when the related deferred income tax asset is released or the deferred income tax labilities 1s
settled.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offsel when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset
current tax assets against current lax liabilities and when the deferred income {axes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settie the balances on a net! basis.

Pensions

The Graup operates a defined contribution pension scheme for employees. Contributions are paid as
fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does nat hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
o employee service in the current and prior periods. The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contnbutions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due, Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset 1o the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. Intenm eguty dividends are recognised
when paid. Final equity dividends are recognised wher, approved by the shareholders at an annual
general meeting.
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CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Research and development

In the research phases of an internal project it is not possible to demonstrate that the project will
generate future economic benefits and hence expenditure on research and development shall be
recognised as an expense when incurred. Intangible assets are recognised from the development
phase of a project if and only If certain specific criteria are met in order to demonstrate the assets will
generate probable future economic benefits and that its cost can be reliably measured. The capitalised
development cosls are subsequently amorlised on a straight line basis over their useful economic lives.
which range from 4 to 16 years.

If it is not possible to distinguish between the research phase and the development phase of an internal
project. the expenditure is treated as if it were incurred in the research phase only.

To date, no material development expenditures have been capialsed.
New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

In January 20186, the IASB issued the final publication of the IFRS 16 Leases standard, which will
supersede the current JAS 17, Leases standard. Under IFRS 16, a tease will exist when a customer
controls the right to use an identified assel as demonstrated by the customer having exclusive use of
the asset for a period of time. IFRS 16 introduces a single accounting model for lessees and all leases
will require an asset and liability to be recognised on the statement of financial position at inception.
The accounting treatment for lessors will remain largely the same as under IAS 17.

The standard 1s effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 with early adoption
permitted, but only if the antity is also applying IFRS 15. The Group is required to retrospectively apply
IFRS 16 to all existing leases as of the date of transition and has the option to either

» apply IFRS 16 with full retrospective effect; or

= recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 16 as an adjustment to opening equity
at the date of initial application.

As a practical expedient, an entity is not required to reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease
at the date of initia! application.

The Group will be adopting IFRS 16 on January 1, 2019 and is assessing the impact of this standard
on its consclidated financial statements; however, the Group believes that on adoplion of the standard
there wilt be an increase to assets and liabilities, as the Group wiil be required to record a right-cf-use
asset and a corresponding lease kiability on its Consclidated Statements of Financial Position, as well
as a decrease to operaling costs, an increase to finance costs (due to accretion of the lease Kability)
and an increase lo depreciation {tdue to depreaciation of the right-of-use asset).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

1 Judgement in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements required management to make judgemsnts,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies ang reported
amounts of assets, liabilties income and expenses. Actual resuits may differ from the
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Estimates are based
on historical expenence and other assumptions that are considered reasonable in the
circumstances. The actual amount of values may vary in certain instances from the assumption
and estimates made, Changes will be recorded, with corresponding effect in the statement of
comprehensive income, when, and if, hetter information is obtained.

information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have the most significant
effect on recogniton and measurement of assets, liabilities. income and expenses is provided
below.

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based on forecasts of future taxable profit. The
measurement of future profit for the purposes of determining whether or not to recognise
deferred tax assets depends on many factors, including the Group's ability to generate such
profits and the implementation of effective tax planning strategies. The occurrence or non-
occurrence of such events in the future may lead to significant changes to the measurement of
deferred tax assets.

In recognising provisions. the Group evaluates the extent to which it is possible that it has
incurred a legal or constructive obligation in respect of past events and the probability that there
will be an ouiflow of benefits as a result. The judgement used to recognise provisions are based
on cutrently known factors which may vary over time, resulting in changes in the measurement
of recorded amounts as compared to initial estimates.

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment. 1n accordance with
the accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units (CGUs) have bean
determined based on value-in use calculations. These calkculalions require the use of
estimates.

The annual amortisation charge for other intangible assets is sensitive {o changes in the
estimated useful sconomic lives and residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives
and residual values are re-assessed annually. They are amended when necessary to reflect
current estimates, based on technological advancement, future investmants and economic
utilisation. See note 15 for the carrying amount of the other intangible assets and the
accounting policies for the useful economic lives for each class of assets.

The annusi depreciation charge for property. plant and equipment is sensitive to changes in
the estimated useful economic lives and residual valves of the assets. The useful economic
ives and residual values are re-assessed annualiy. They are amended when necessary lo
reflect current estimates. based on technological advancement, future Investments. economic
utilisation and the physical condition of the assets. See note 13 for the carrying amount of the
property. plant and equipment and the accounting policres for the useful economic lives for
each class of assets.

The Group makes an estimate of the recoverable value of trade and other debtors. When
assessing impairment of trade and other receivables, managemen! considers factors including
the credi rating of the receivable. the ageing profile of recevables and historical experience.
See note 18 for the net camying amount of the receivables.
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2

First time adoption of IFRS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2018, are the first the Group has
prepared in accordance with IFRS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31
Decomber 2017, the Group prepared its financial statements in accordance with UK generally
accepted accounting principle (UK GAAP — FRS 101).

Accordingly, the Group has prepared financial statemenis that comply with IFRS applicable as
al 31 December 2018, together with the comparative period data for the year ended 31
December 2017, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing
the financial stalements, the Group's opening statement of financial position was prepared as
at 1 January 2017, the Group's date of transition to IFRS. This note explains the pnncipal
adjustments made by the Group in restating its UK GAAP financial statements, including the
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2017 and the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017,

Exemptions applied

IFRS 3 Business Combinations has not been applied to either acquistions of subsidianes that
are considered businesses under IFRS, or acquisitions of interests in associates and joint
ventures that occurred before 1 January 2017. Use of this exemption means that the UK GAAFP
carrying amounts of assets and ligbilities, that are required to be recognised under IFRS. is
their deemed cost at the date of the acquisition. After the date of the acquisition. measurement
is in accordance with IFRS. Assets and liabilities that do not qualify for recagnition under IFRS
are excluded from the opening IFRS statement of financial position. The Group did not
recognise or exclude any previously recognised amounts as & result of IFRS recognition
requirements.

iFRS 1 also requires that the Local GAAP carrying amount of goodwill must be used in the
opening IFRS statement of financial position {apart from adjustments for goodwill impairment
and recognition or derecognition of intangible assets). In accordance with IFRS 1, the Group
has tested goodwill for impairment at the date of transition to IFRS. No goodwill impairment
was deemed necessary at 1 January 2017,

The Group has not applied IAS 21 retrospectively to fair value adjustments and goodwill from
business combinations that occurred before the date of transition to IFRS. Such fair value
adjustments and goodwill are treated as assets and liabilities of the parent rather than as assets
and liabilities of the acquiree. Therefore, those assets and liabililies are already expressed in
the functional currency of the parent or are non-monetary foreign currency items and no further
translation differences occur.

Remeasurement at transition

No figures included in the statement of comprehensive income. statemaent of financial position.
statement of changes in equity. or the statement of cash flows at 1 January 2017 or 31
December 2017 have changed as a result of remeasurement under IFRS.
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3

Changes in accounting policies
IFRS 9 Financiat Instruments

IFRS 9 replaces the guidance in JAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement,
on the classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 eliminates the existing 1AS
39 categonies of held to maturity, availabie for-sale and loans and receivabie.

Financial assets are classified into one of two categores on inilial recognition.

« financiat assets measured at amortized cost: or
s financial assets measured at fair value.

The classification of financial assets under (FRS 9 is generally based on the business model in
which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash fow characteristics.

Gans and losses on remeasurement of financial assets measured at fair value will be generatly
recognized in profit or loss, except for an investment in an eguity instrument which is not held-
for-trading. IFRS 9 provides, on initial recognition, an irrevocable election to present all fair
value changes from the investiment in other comprehensive income {"OCIT} (*FVQCI™). The
election is available on an individual investment-by-investment basis. Amounts presented in
OCI will nat be reclassified to profit or loss at a later date. IFRS 9 aiso includes a new general
hedge accounting standard which will align hedge accounting more closely with risk
management.

IFRS 9 replaces the 'incurred loss’ model in {AS 39 with an expected credit loss ("ECL™) model.
The new impaiment model applies to financial assets at amortized cost. contract assets and
debt instruments measured at FVQOCL,

The Group adopted this standard on January 1, 2018 and it had a nominal impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

On May 28, 2014 the IASB issued IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The
standard contains 2 single mode! that applies 1o contracts with customers. The model features
a coniract-based five step analysis of transactions t¢ determine whether. how much and when
revenue is recognised. New estimates and judgemental thresholds have been introduced,
which may affect the amount and timing of revenue recognised. The Group has adopted IFRS
15, effective January 1, 2018, using the cumulative effect method. Under the cumulative effect
method, the Group has recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 15 as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as al January 1. 2018, Therefore. the
comparative information has not been restated and continues 1o be reported under IAS 18 and
IAS 11,

The details of the primary changes on adoption of IFRS 15 are set out below.
A. Software license arrangements (including subscription arrangements)

Under the Group’'s previous revenue recognition polcies, hcense revenue from term-based
licenses was generally deferred and amortised on a rateable basis over the license term. Under
{FRS 15, the Group has deemed the licenses (o be generally distingt from other performance
obligations. Revenue allocated to the distinct license 's recognised at the time that both the
right-ic-use the software has commenced for the term and the software has been made
available to the customer.
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Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Centain of the Group's contracts with customers contain provisions thal require the customer to
renew optional support and maintenance in crder to maintain the active nght-to-use a perpetual
or term license. The renewal payments after the initial bundied support and maintenance term
in thege cases apply to both the continued right-to-use the ficense and the suppor and
maintenance renewal. Where the fees payable for the initial term are incremental lo the fees
for the renewal terms, the excess is treated as a prepayment for expected renewals and
allocated (amortised) evenly over the expected customer renewals, up to the estimated life of
the software, that is typically 4-6 years. The Group's previous policy with respect to such
incremental upfront ficense fees was to recognise the fee primarily over the initiaf first year term
of the arrangements.

B. Costs 10 obtain a contract

Under the Group's previous accounting policies, the Group generally expensed incremental
commission costs paid to employees or third parties to obtain customer contracts as incurred.
Under IFRS 15, the Group allocates these incremental commission costs to the various
performance obligations to which they relate using the expected-based allocation for bundied
commissions (relative expected margins), For those performance obligations that are expected
to be renewed al the end of the initial period without a further commission (such as post-contract
custamer support}, the Group has considered expecied renewals over the (e of the intellectual
property when determining the expected margins from the arrangemeni. For performance
obligations not delivered upfront, the allocated commissions are deferred and amortised over
the pattern of transfer of the related performance obligation. For commissions allocated to term-
based license arrangements and post-contract customer support the amortisation penod is
expected to be approximately 4-6 years. Capilalised costs to obtain a contract are included in
othsr non-current assets on the consolidated statement of financial position.

The following table details the impact on our opening statement of financial position as a result
of adopting the new standard.

1 January 1 January
2018 prior to 2018 after
adoption of adoption of
IFRS 15 Adjustments IFRS 15
£ £ £
Assets
Current assets:
Contract assets - 454 929 454 929
Deferred 1ax assels 333,837 459 478 783,113
Inveniories (work in progress} 337.706 6,529 344,635
l.iabilities
Current liabilities
Deaferred revenue {12,913 353) (2.566,931) (15,480,284)
Net assets 12,567,235 (1.645 5986) 10,905,639
Equity
Sharaholders equity
Retained earnings (8.271.460) {1645 596) VIO 917 066)
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Changas in accounting poiicies (continued)

The foliowing tables summarises the impacts of adopting IFRS 15 on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31. 2018

Assets
Non-current assets:
Contract assets

Current assets:
Contract assets
Defarred tax
Inventories (work in progress)

Liabllitles

Non-curren! liabilities
Deferred revenue

Current liabilities
Deferred revenue

Net assets

Equity
Shareholders equity
Retained eamings

Revenue
Expenses
Profit before tax

Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

31 31 December
December 2012 without
2018 as adoption of
raported Adjustments {FRS 18
£ £ £
703.652 (703,852) -
214036 {214,038) -
404 094 {137,074} 267,020
317.154 (5,079} 312.072
{528.010) 528,010 -
{14,365.133) 2,261,333 (12,103.800)
11,888,499 1.729.502 13.618.001
{(17.626.239) 1,729,502 15.896.737
3 31 December
December 2018 without
2018 as adoption of
reported Adjustments IFRS 15
£ £ £
63,232,547 (1.488 340) 61,747,207
(56.246,895) 29.076 (56,217,819}
6,985,652 (1.457 264) 5.519.388
(1,896,341) 408 237 (1.788104)
5,289,311

(1.049.027)

4 240284

The adoption of IFRS 15 had no impact to cash from or used in operating financing or investing
aclivities on our consolidated statement of cash flows.
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Changes in accounting policies {continued)

The following tables provides information about unbilled revenue (contract asset) and deterred
revenue (contract liability).

Unbilled revenue £
At 1 January 2018 383,694
Increase from IFRS 15 opening adjustment 6,829
Decrease from transfers to accounts receivable {447,041)
Increase from changes as a result of the measure of progress 324,650
Business combinations 48,878
At 31 December 2018 317 151
£
Unbilled revenue classified as a current asset 317,151
Deferred revenue £
At 1 January 2018 12,913 352
increase from IFRS 15 opening adjustment 2,566,931
Decrease from revenue recognised that was inciuded in the deferred (15,323,860}
revenue bafance at the beginning of the period
Increase due to cash received, excluding amounts recognised as revenue 12,675.289
during the period
Business combinations 2061431
At 31 Dacember 2018 14,893,143
£
Deferraed revenue classified as a current liability 14,365,132
Deferred revenue classified as a non-current liability 528.010

The amount of revenue recognised in the year ended 31 December 2018 from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods was £nil.

Revenue allocaled 1o remaining performance obligations represents contracted revenue that
has not yet been recoghised {"contracted not yet recognised”™} and includes unearned ravanue
and amounts that will be invoiced and recognised as revenue in future penods. Contracted not
yel recognised revenue was approximately £32.235.133 as of 31 December 2018, of which the
Group expect to recognise an estimated 83% of the revenue over the nex! 12 months and the
remainder thereafter.

Under IFRS 15 the Group has capitalised and amortised incremental commission costs on a
systemalic basis. consistent with the pattem of transfer of the good(s) or service(s) to which the
comruission relates as the Group believes these costs are recoverable. The tolal capitalised
commission costs as of 31 December 2018 is £917.688. The amount of amortisation was
£732,827 and there was no impairment loss in relation to the costs capitalised.
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Revenue

Revenue is denved from the pnncipal activity of the Group. which 1s considered to be the sole
class of business. Analysis of the Group's revenue by geographical location is as foliows.

United Kingdom
Rest of Europe
Rest of the world

Analysis of expenses by nature

2018
£

49,045,032
12,628,622
1,558,993

63,232,547

2017
£

42,544,076
12,885,494
1,037,641

56,467,211

The breakdown by nature of cost of sales, distribution costs and other administrative

expenses is as follows:

Employee remuneration

Intangible assets
Amortisation of other intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Depraciation of property, plant and equipment

Operating leases

Foreign exchange loss
Consumables and raw materials used
Telecommunications
Maintenance costs

Smaill equipment purchases
Travel

Advertising

Bad debt expense

Royalty costs

Other expenses

Total cost of sales. distribution costs and
administrative expenses

Other operating income

Customer settlements

2018
£

28,200,833

8,177 .538

476,360

277135
208,738
4,591 852
398.042
2,767,292
380,513
1.572.403
1,171,648
118,831
2,367.766
£,021.850

55,737,258

———————

2018

311 686

- 33.

2017
£

24,123,629

6,332,892

404,620

415,221
510,276
5,346,378
427,452
2,384,760
272 367
1437117
1,058,266
80,103
2,008,324
9,238,601

54,140,996

T ————

2017

20697
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T Auditor’s remuneration

Fees payabie to Grant Thornton UK LLP and #s associates in respect of both audit and non-
audit services are as follows:

2018 2017
£ £
Audit services ~ stalutory audit of the parent and

consolidated accounts 12.885 7,500

Audit services — statutory audit of associates of the
Company 63,462 98,458
Taxation compliance services 43,258 27,856
All other non-audit services - 5,549
119,605 139,363

8 Employees and directors

The average nurmber of parsons (including directors) employed by the Group during the year

was:
2018 2017
No No
Professional services 85 87
Maintenance 160 151
Research and development 99 97
Sales and marketing 68 7
Management, general and administration 83 58
505 465
The employee costs for the persons above:
2018 2017
E £
Wages and salaries 25,600,981 21,919,780
Social security costs 2,087 665 1,830,709
Defined contribution cosls 512,187 373.140
28,200,833 24,123,629
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Employees and directors
Directors

in respect of the Directors of Jonas Computing (UK) Limited:

2018 2017
£ £
Emoluments 491 319 -
Company contributions to money purchase pension
schemes 7.047 -
488,366 -
2018 2017
No No
The number of Directors to whom retirement benefits

are accruing under money purchase schemes was: 2 -

Remuneration disclosed above includes the following amounts paid to the highest paid director.

2018 2017
£ E
Emoluments 209,898 -
Company contributions to money purchase pension
schemes 5917 -

In the comparative year all directors were remunerated for their services by other Group
entities. .
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10

1

Finance income

Other interest raceivable

Finance costs

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans
Interest on finance leases and hire purchase coniracts
Loans from group undertakings

income tax expense

Current tax

UK Corporation tax on profits of year

Adjustments recognised in the year for current tax of
prior periods

Total UK current tax

Foreign current tax on profits for the current period

Total current tax

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of timing difference
Change in tax rates

Adjustment in respect of prior periods

Total deferred tax

Total tax charge

2018

328

2m8

70
4615
505,260

509,965

2018

535,234
44 835
580,070
1,141,489

1,721,569

(25.,228)

(25,228)

1,696,341

879,382

2017

143

2017

75,882
8,221
503,706

587,808

2017

1,279.973

(798,108)

481.865

455,208
937.073

(63,757)
5796
270

(57,691)

e r—
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12

Income tax expense {continued)

Tax expense reconciliation

2018 2047
£ £
Profit before income tax 6,885,652 5,592 150
Corporation tax charge thereon at 19% (2017 —
19.25%) 1,327,275 1,141,303
Effects of,
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,389,510 802 683
Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised - {95,539)
Non-taxable income (342.727) (81,240}
Tax losses not recognised as a deferred tax asset (3,393) (4,.893)
Capital allowances for year in excess of depreciation (62,147) (5,064}
Adjustments to tax in respect ot prior periods {144 077) 6,358
Adjustment in research and development tax credit )
leading o a decrease in the tax charge (12.718) {30.762)
Short term timing difference leading to a decrease in
taxation {5.872) (10,730)
Other timing differences leading to a decrease in
taxation (600,800} (683,980)
Other differences 158,200 {158,754)
1,686,341 879.382

The effective tax rate for 2018 was 19% (18.25% in 2017). The theoretical income laxes are
determined by applying the domestic corporate tax rate in The United Kingdom, where the
parent is domiciled. The effective tax rate is calculated including the share of post-tax results
of associates. This calculation is consistent with that used in prior years.

In the prior year. the Finance Act 2016 was enacted so as to reduce the UK corporation tax
rate to 17% for the financial year 2020. As a result of previous legislation affecting the UK tax
rate, the main rate of corporation tax reduced from 20% to 19% with effect from 1 April 2017.
These tates have been used to measure deferred tax asseis and liabilities whare applicable.

Dividends on equity shares 2018 2017
£ £

Interim dividends paid £12,044,30% (2017 -
£9.863.329) per share 12.044,309 9.863.328
12,044,309 9,863,329
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Goodwiil

Cost

As at 1 January 2017
Business combinations

As at 1 January 2018

Business combinations
As at 31 December 2018

impairment
As at 1 January 2017, 1 January 2018
and 31 December 2018

Carrying amount:
As at 31 December 2018
As at 31 December 2017

As at 1 January 2017

Goodwill
£

5,073,245

1,589,663

6,662,908
361.663

7.024,571

7.024 571
6,662,908

5,073,245
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16

Other intangible assets

Cost or valuation:

As at 1 January 2017
Exchange differences
Additions

Business combinations
Disposals

As at 1 January 2018
Exchange differences
Business combinations

As at 31 December 2018

Amortisation and impairment:

As al 1 January 2017
Exchange differences
Amortisation for the year
Disposals

As at 1 January 2018
Exchange differences
Amortisation for the year

Asg at 31 December 2018

Carrylng amount:
As at 31 December 2018

As at 31 December 2017

As at 1 January 2017

Customer Inteltectual
relationships property Total
£ £ £
7.407.011 12,947,745 20,354,757
ar.121 208,821 245,042
- 15,000 15,000
4,395 000 5,380,000 9,775,000
- (55,000} {55,000)
11,839,132 18,496,566 30,335,698
11,358 63,892 75,251
4991720 11,290,821 16,282.541
16,842,210 29,851,280 46,693,490
{757.671) (3,528,672) (4,286,243)
{14,567) (117,699) (132,266)
{1,960,011) (4,372,881) (6,332,892)
- 55,000 55,000
(2,732,249) (7,564,252) (10,696,501)
68,452 553,096 621.548
(2,294 496) (5,883.042) (8,177,538)
(4,958,293) (13,284,198) (18,252,491}
11,883,917 16,557,082 28,440,999
9106883 10,532.314 19 639.197
6,649,340 5419073 16.068,413
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Acquisition of business

On 12 October 2018 the parent entity acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Greycon
Limited, through this acquisition the group also gained control of Greycon Software SA,
Greycon Software Support & Development MEPE. and Shandong Greycon Software
Technology Limited

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

Book value Adjustments Fair value
£ £ £
Property, plant and equipment 2,573,120 - 2,673,120
Other intangibles assels - 13.488.420 13,488,420
Cash and cash equivalents 3.634,394 - 3,634,394
Trade receivables 489,821 - 489,821
Other receivables 1,426,372 - 1,426,372
Amounts due from fellow group
undertakings 265,698 - 21,855
Trade payables (101,705) - (101,705)
Current tax liabilities (129,440 - (129.440)
Accrued liabilities (2.353,722) - (2,353,722)
Deferred income (1.495,167) . (1.495,167)
Deferred tax liability - (2,562,800) (2,562,800)
Net identifiable assets acquired 4,309,371 10,925,620 15,234,991
Goodwill 3,978
Total consideration 15,238,969
Consideration was satisfied by
£
Cash paid 6,000,000
Net tangible assets adjustment 4,309,371
Deferred consideration 4,929,598
Total consideration 15,238,969

The acquired business contributed revenues of £1,397,146 and net profit of £109,864 to the
group for the period from 15 Oclober to 31 December 2018.
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Acquisition of business (continued)

On 15 January 2018 the parent entity acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Blayhall
Marine Limited, through this acquisition the group also gained control of Havenstar MMS
Limited, Havenstar Software Solutions Limited. and Star Marina Solutions LLC.

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired. and goodwill are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Other intangibles assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

Other receivables

Trade payables

Current tax hiabilities

Other tax and social security
Accrued liabilities

Deferred income

Deferred tax liability

Net identifiable assets acquired
Goodwiil

Total consideration

Consideration was satisfied by
Cash paid

Net tangible assets adjustment
Deferred consideration

Total consideration

Book value Adjustments Fair value
£ £ £

7,207 - 7.207

- 655,000 655,000

656,401 - 656,401

246,505 - 248,505

2,237 - 2,237
(3,057} - (3,057)
{28,861) - {28,961)
(42,688) - (42,688)
(208,883) - (208,883)
(20,526) - (20,526)
- {117.9G0) (117,800)

608,235 537.100 1,145,335

305,989

1,451,324
£

600,000

371.324

480,000

1,451,324

The acquired business contributed revenues of £451.397 and net loss of £15.375 to the group
for the period from 15 January to 31 December 2018.
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17  Acquisition of business (continued)

On 31 July 2018 the parent entity acquired 100% of the issued share capital of EZ-Runner
Systemns Limited.

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired, and goodwill are as follows:

Book value Adjustments Fair value
£ £ £
Property, plant and equipment 11,405 - 11,405
Other intangibles assets - 1,635,930 1,635,930
Cash and cash equivalents 866,787 - 866,787
Trade receivables 128,287 - 128,297
Other receivables 12,060 - 12,060
Trade payables {38,447) - (38.447)
Other tax and social security {49,252) - (49,102)
Other payables {10,834) - (10,985)
Deferred income {75,256) - (75.256)
Deferred tax liability {1,828) (310,827) (312.655)
Net identifiable assets acquired 842,932 1,325,103 2,168,035
Goodwill 49,465
Total consideration 2,217,500
Consideration was sahsfied by
£
Cash paid 1,000,000
Net tangible assets adjustment 517,500
Deferred consideration 700,000
Total consideration 2.217.500

The acquired business contributed revenues of £595,801 and net loss of £24 557 to the group
for the period from 1 August to 31 December 2018.
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17

Acquisition of business {(continyed)

On 1 November 2018 the parent entity acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Minted

Box Education Limited.

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired. and goodwill are as follows:

Other intangibles assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

Other receivables

Current tax jiability

Other tax and social security
Accrued liabilities

Deferred tax liabifity

Net identifiable assets acquired
Goodwill

Total consideration

Consideration was satisfied by
Cash paid

Net tangible assets adjustment
Defarred consideration

Total consideration

Book value Adjustments Fair value
£ £ £
- 503,191 503,191
141,793 - 141,793
74,022 - 74,022
82,976 - 82,976
(21,262) - (21,262)
(26.205) . (26,205)
(1,140} - {1.140)
{85.606) (95.606)
250,184 407,585 657,769
2,231
660,000
£
375.000
10,000

275,000

660.000

The acquited business contributed revenues of £4 848 and net profit of £4.846 to the group for
the period from 1 November to 31 December 2018.
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18

19

20

Inventories

Work in progress
Finished goods and goods for resale

Trade and other receivables

Current portion

Trade receivables

Amounts due from fellow group
undertakings

Prepayments and accrued income
Othar receivables

Ag at 1
January
2018 2017 2017
E E £
317,151 383,654 155,602
817,047 1,043,546 975,525
1.134,198 1,427,240 1,131,127
As att
Januvary
2018 2017 2017
E £ £
10,527,336 9,458,713 8,500,486
47,852 537 29,550,807 22,396,797
2,091,887 1,632,593 1,075,563
1,543,265 815,715 ©3,080
62.015.025 41,357,828 32,065,906

The amounts due frem fellow group undertakings are unsecured and are repayable on demand

Cash and cash equivalents

Current portion

Cash in hand

Balance as stated in the statement of
financial position at 31 December

Less bank overdrafts shown as liabilities in
the statement of financial position

Balance as state in the statement of cash
flows at 31 December

As at 1

January

2018 2017 2017

£ £ £

4,635,879 2,818,583 3.110.225

4635879 2818583 3.110,225

(613.324) (6874.201) -

4,022,545 2,144,382

3,110,225
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21 Borrowings

Curront portion

Bank |loans and overdrafts
Finance leases

Balance at 31 December

Non-Current portion

Loans from fellow group undertakings
Finance leases

Balance at 31 December

As at1
January
2018 2017 2017
£ £ £

613,334 674,201 -
64 080 124,936 117.808
677,414 799,137 117,808
4,680.384 4,680,384 4 680,384
46,903 22.452 68,233
4727287 4,702,836 4748617

The bank overdratts are unsecured and repayable on demand

During January 2015 Jonas Computing (UK) Lid entered in to 3 loan agreements with CSI
Luxembourg for; £1,824,840, £1,875,000 and £950,160. The loans were later assigned from
CSI Luxembourg to Constellation Software Holdco Ltd, however Jonas Computing (UK) Ltd is
still raquired to remit interest at 8% to Constellation Software Holdco Ltd, in kine with the
agreements. Repayment is due on 1st October 2021, 14th August 2021 and 10th December

2021 respectively.

22 Trade and other payables

Current portion

Trade payables

Amounts due to fellow group undertakings
Other tax and social security

Accrued liabilities

Other payables — Earnout liability

Other payabies

Asatt

January

2018 2017 2017

£ £ £

778,626 1,374,885 448,337
40,752 978 23,854,142 17,210,333
2,358,849 1,972,558 1,867,907
12,445,001 5,458,236 4 871,470

12,921,944 5120376 945 372
88,554 431,198 495 995
69,346,052 38,211,505 25837,414

The amounts due from fellow group undertakings are unsecured and are repayable on demand
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23 Financial instruments and financial risks
Financial instruments

The Group's principal financial instruments, from which financial sk anses, comprise of the
foltowing:

- Trade and other receivables

- Cash and cash aquivalents

- Borrowings

- Trade and other payables

The Group does not issue or use financial instruments of a speculative nature.

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with IFRS 9 as
detailed in the accounting policies to these consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Loans and receivables held at amortised cost

As at1
January
2018 2017 2017
£ £ £
Current assets

Trade and other receivables 59,214,264 39,722,016 30,919,858
Cash and cash equivalents 4.635.879 2.818,583 3,110,225

Contract assets 1,140,702 - -
Total financial assels 64,990,845 42,540,599 34,030,083

Financlal liabilities held at amortised cost

As at 1
January
2018 2017 2017
£ £ £

Current liabilities
Borrowings 5,404 701 5,501,973 4,866,425
Trade and other payablas 54,791,444 31,118,571 23,024,135
Total financial liabilities 60,196,145 36,620,544 27,880 560

Financial risks

Qverview

The Group is exposed o risks of varying degrees of significance which could affect its ability to
achiave its strategic objectives for growth. The main abjectives of the Group's risk management
process are to ensure that risks are properly identified and that the capital base is adequate in
relation to those risks. The principal financial risks to which the Group is exposed are described
below.

Market risk

The Group operates internationally. giving rise to exposure to market risks from changes n
fareign exchange rates which impact sales and purchases that are denominated in a8 currency
other than the respective functional currencies of certain of its subsidiaries. The Group currently
does not typically use derivative instruments to hedge its exposure to those risks. Most of the
Group's businesses are organised geographically so that many of its expenses are incurred in
the same currency as its revenues thus mitigating some of its exposure to currency fiuctuations
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23 Financial instruments and financial risks (continued)

Liquihty risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is not able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due
or can do so only at excassive cost. The Group manages liquidity risk through the management
of its capital structure and financial leverage.

The maijority of the Group's financial liabilities recorded in accounts payable and accrued
liabilities are due within 60 days.

Given the Group's available liquid resources and credit capacity as comparad to the timing of
the payments of liabilities. the Group assesses its fiquidity risk to be low.

Credit nisk

Credit risk represents the financial loss thal the Group would experience if a counterparty to a
financial instrument, in which the Group has an amount owing from the counterparty failed to
meet its obligations in accordance with the terms and conditions of its contracts with the Group.
The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets, including receivables from customers,
represents the Group's maximum credit exposure.

The majority of the accounts receivable balance relates to maintenance invoices to customers
that have a history of payment.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade ad other receivable at the reporting date was:

As at1
January
2018 2017 2017
£ £ £
Current assets
Trade receivables 10,527,336 9,458,713 8.500.486

There is no concentration of credit risk because of the Group’s diverse and disparate number of
customers with individual receivables that are not significant to the Group on a consolidated
basis. In addition, the Group typically requires up front deposits from cusiomers o protect
against credit risk.

The Group manages credit risk related to cash by maintaining the majority of the Group's bank
accounts with Schedule 1 banks.

Fair values versus carrying amounts

The camrying values of cash, trade receivables, trade payables, accrued liabilities, and
borrowings and other payables, approximate their fair values dus to the short-term nature of
these instruments. Bank debt 1s subject to market interest rates.
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24

Deaferred tax

The movement on the deferred income tax accounl is as shown below,

Liabilities Assets
£ £
As at 1 January 2017 (388,585) 302.570
Debit/{credit) to profit and loss (5,456) 31,067
Recognised on business combination (1,664,681) -
As at 31 December 2017 {2,058,702) 333,637
Debit/{credit) to profit and loss 373,483 70,457
Recognised on business combination {3.087,133) -
As at 31 December 2018 (4,772.352) 404.094
The deferred tax asset is made up as follows.:
As at1
January
2018 2017 2017
£ £ £
Deceierated capital allowances 326,245 71,295 39,691
Retirement benefit obligations - 2,079 7.029
Tax losses carried forward 77.849 255,989 251,626
Other short termn timing differences - 4,274 4,224
404,094 333,637 302,570
The deferred tax fiability is made up as follows:
As at1
January
2018 2017 2017
£ £ E
Recegnised on business combination (4,751.794) {1,664,661) -
Other short term timing differences (19,024) {394,041) (388,585)
Retirement benefit obligations (1.534) - -
(4,772,352) (2,058,702) (388,585)
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25

28

Share capital and reserves
Share capital

As att
January
2018 2017 2017
£ £ £
Allotted, issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1 each 1 1 1

The Ordinary shares have attached to them full voling, dividend and capital distribution
(including on winding up) rights: they do not confer any rights of redemption.

Reserves

Share premium account
The share premium account includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any
transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from share premium.

Capital contribution
The capital contribution reserve includes additional capital recewved on existing issue of share
capital.

Retained eamings
Retained earnings include cumulative profit and loss net of distributions to owners.

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives in managing capital are to ensure sufficient liquidity to pursue its
strategy of organic growth combined with sirategic acquisitions and lo provide returns to its
sharehciders. The Group manages its capital with the objective of ensuring that there are
adequate capital resources while maximising the return to shareholders.

The Board of Directors determine if and when dividends should be declared and paid based
on all relevant circumstances, including the desirability of financing further growth of the Group
and its financial position at the relevant time.

The Group makes adjustments to its capital structure in light of general economic conditions
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets and the Group's working capital requirements.
In order to maintain or adjust its capital structure, the Group, upon approvat from its Board of
Directors, may increase or decrease dividends, take out a line of credit or undertake other
activities as deemed appropriate under the specific circumstances. The Board of Directors
reviews and approves any material transactions not in the ordinary course of business. as well
as significant acqursitions and other major investments above pre-determined guantitative
thresholds.
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rig

28

29

30

Notes to the statement of cash flows
Recanciliation of profit to cash flows generated from operations
2018 2017
£ £
Proftt before tax 6,985,652 5,692,150
Adjustments for:
Finance cosls 509,965 587,809
Finance income (328) (143}
Unrealised foreign exchange movements (654,038) 74,440
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 37,664 67,794
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment 476,360 404,620
Amortisation of intangible assets B.177.538 6,332,892
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 293,042 {122,918)
Increase in receivables (18,563,730) {6,558,695)
Iincrease in payables 27,045,268 9,817,461
Cash generated from operations 24,307,393 16,185,410
Contingent liabilities
In the event that bank indebtedness ariges in the ultimate parent undertaking, Constellation
Software Inc., it is secured by means of an unlimited guarantee and debenture over the assets
of the Group and Company.
Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases
The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease agreements
are as follows:
2018 2017
£ £
Amounts due:
Within one year 1,315,508 962,069
Between one and fiva years 3709580 2,186,136
After five years 4,101,117 1,167,835
9126205 4,333,040
Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The pension
cost represenis contributions payabie by the Group to the fund and amounted to £538,027
{2017: £360,302). Contributions totaliing £nil (2017 £60,451) were payable to the fund at the
year end.
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31  Related party transactions

Key managemeant compensation

2018 2017

£ £

Wages, salaries and short-term benefits 1.054 368 837,337
Post-empioyment benefits 8.814 12.468
Share-based payments 192,420 136,749

1,255,602 986,554

During the year the Group paid £16.193 (2017. £16,10) to Arrow Business Communications
Ltd, a company of which some shares are owned by the wife of a Director. £nil (2017: £nil}
was owing from Arrow Business Communications Ltd as at the year end.

32 URtimate parent company

The immediate parent undertaking is Constellation Software UK Holdco Ltd, a company
incorporated in England and Wales.

Constellation Software Inc. heads the largest group which prepares consolidated financial
statements in which the results of the Company and the Group are included. The financial
statements of Constellation Software Inc. are available to the public and may be obtained
from Gary Jonas computing Ltd, 8133 Warden Ave, Suite 400, Markham, Ontario, Canada.
L6G 183.

33  Events after the reporting date

On 11 March 2018 Jonas Computing (UK) Ltd purchased Green 4 Solutions Limited who
subsequently own 4Sight Sport and Leisure Limited for an initial consideration of
£1.,850,000, plus other contingent considerations.

On 21 June 2019 Jonas Computing (UK) Lid purchased Corvid Paygate Limited for an initial
consideration of £720,000. plus other contingent considerations.

On 30 August 2019 Jonas Computing (UK) Ltd purchased Uniware Systems Limited who
subsequently own UPay Limited for an initial consideration of £7,800,000, plus other
contingent considarations.

On 30 November 2019 Jonas Computing (UK) Ltd purchased Motion Software Limited for
an nitial consideration of £2,325,000, plus other contingent considerations.

On 3 December 2019 Jonas Computing {UK} Ltd purchased Retail & Sports Systems
Limited for an initial consideration of £850.000, plus other contingent considerations.
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Company Registration No. 05301607

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Other intangible assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Contract assets

Current assets

Inventaries

Contract assets

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables.
amounts falling due within one year
Deferred income

Net current llabilities

Total assets less current
liabilities

Trade and other payables:
amounts falling due after more
than one year

Non-current deferred incame

Net asseots

Notes

2

3

4
6 18,050
80,419
7 39.067.945
8 797,563
39,964,977

9 (72,774,230)

(822,453}

10

2018

68,300,917
65,453

69.366,370

(33.631.706)

35.734,664

(4,680,384)
(81,153)

30,873,127

2017
£
1,189
50,446
49 328,279
48,379,914
14,580
24,939,447
622,216
25,576,223
(45,335,061}
(687,808}
(20.446 646)
28,933,268
(4,680.384)
24,252 884




JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED Company Registration No. 06301607
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2018 2017
Notes £ £
EQUITY
Called-up share capital 12 1 1
Share premium account 16,859,737 16,859,737
Capital contribution reserve 12,655,000 5,800,000
Retained earnings 1,458,389 1,503,146
Total aquity 30,973,127 24,252,884

As permitted by s408 Companies Act 2006, the company has not presented its own income statement,

nor a statement of comprehensive income, and related notes. The Company's profit for the year was
£11,986,629 (2017: £10,165,065).

The financial statements on pages 54 to 70 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised
forissuedn .........coooeeens . «ooui...... @nd are signed on its behalf by:

Saklad
Director

The adoption of IFRS 15 had no impact to cash from or used in operating. financing, or investing
activities or our statement of cash flows.

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financiat statements.

-55.



‘sjuawele]s jelmuely 8y} Jo Led |esBaju ue wioj sajeu pue sayod Buunoase Builueduioaoe sy |

‘SMOY YSED JO JUSLIIEIS PRIEMAOSLOD JNO UO sapARoe Bugsaau) Jo ‘Buoueuy ‘Bugriado Ul pasn 10 LWOJ YSeI 0} Jordw| ou pey G| §H 4| JO uondope ey}

LZ1'€46'08 BBL'BSY'L 000'559'21 LEL'658'TL i BL02Z 19qWal(] LE e aduejeq
(6oe'wr0'2L)  (BOC'YPOTH) - - - SpuapIA]
000’4589 - 000'668'9 - - uonnquucs {Elde)
'SIBUMO SE AYJBdED J13U) Ul SIBUMD YUIM Suopdesues )
6Z9'986'L1 629'986'LL - - o - JEaA 3Ly O] FOIU SAISUSURIHLCD (B0} PUB 1101
(240°LL) (220°24) - - - G1 SN 10} Juawisnipy
¥88'26L've 9vL'EBS L 000'008'S 1E2'658'91 3 £L02 12qusda( L ie adueieg
(6ze'cos's) (526°'c98's) - - - SPUSPING]
000'008's - 000'008'S - - uonnNqQuiued [elider)
‘SIaumo se Aoeded 118U} Ui SISUMO Yl SUCHDBSUB |
§90'S5L°0l §90'694°04 - - - JESA 3} JO} sWoou) ansuayaIdwod |B]0) pue Jyoid
gpL'ISL'8L OL¥'V6T' L - 18.'858'6L L 1102 uenuer | Je souejeg
3 3 3 3
jQ1ol sBuiwed pauie)ey sao5d winpuasd =ndes
uolnguuos aByg aleys
(Enden

810Z ¥3EW3I03A Lt Q3ANI ¥VIA FHL ¥O3
ALINDA N1 SIONVHO 40 INIWILVLS ANVANOD LNIHVYd

aaLiwe (N} ONILNDNOD SYNOTr



JONAS COMPUTING (UK) LIMITED
PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

General information

Jonas Computing (UK) Limded is a limited lhiabilty company incorporated in the United Kingdom. is
registered office is Gladstone House, Hithercroft Road, Wallingford, Oxfordshire, OX10 8BT.

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of software solutions and services to the club
market, including golf courses, city clubs and yacht clubs, trading under the Jonas and Clubminder
brands.

Basis of preparation

The parent company financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
unless ctherwise specified within these accounting policies and in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework' and the Companies Act 2006.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 101 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. Ii also requires management to exercise judgment in applying the Company
accounting policies (see note 1).

The following principal accounting pelicies have been apgplied:
Going concern

The financial statemenis have been prepared on the going concern basis which assumes that the
cormpany will continue in operational existance for the foreseeable future. The directors have reviewed
the working capital requirements of the group for a period of at least 12 months from the anticipated
date of signing of the financiatl statements and are satisfied that the company will be able to meel its
liabilities as they fall due.

Financlal reporting standard 101 -reduced disclosure exemptions
The company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:

« the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

+ the requirements of paragraphs 91-89 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measuremant

+ the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

» the requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

+ the requirements in |AS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions
entered into between two or more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is a
party to the transactian is whelly awned by such a tnember

s the requiremenis of IAS 16 Property. Plant and Equipment to present a comparative
reconciliation

* the requirements in IAS 24, ‘Related party disclosures (key management compensation)

+ the requirements of paragraphs 134-136 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements for
capital management disciosures

« the effect of future accounting standards not adopted

+ presentation of comparative recognition of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning
and end of the period
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Impact of new international reporting standards, amendments and interpretations

IFRS §

There have been no material impacts on the Company's financial statements as a result of adopting
IFRS 9 from January 1, 2018.

IFRS 15

From January 1, 2018, the Company has applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. There
have been no material impacts on the Company's financial statements as a rasult of adopting IFRS 15
from January 1, 2018.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presemtation currency
The Company's functional and presentational currency is GBP.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functicnal currency using the spot exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end foreign currency monetary ilems are translated using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction and non-monetary tems measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate
when fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of monstary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognisad in the statement of comprehensive Income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate 1o borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the statement of comprehensive Income. within finance income or costs'. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Within ‘other
operating income'.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it 18 probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured as the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates, value added tax and other sales
taxes. The following criteria must alsc be met before revenue is recognised:

The Company has contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services
to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company
adjusts the transaction prices of these contracts for the time value of money.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment s due.

For fixed-price contracts, revenue 1s recognised based on the actual service provided 10 the end of the
reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be provided because the customer receives and
uses the benefits simultaneously.
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Revenue {continued)}

Software licenses are recognised on delivery of the software license. When delivery of goods is delayed
at the customers' request, and the customer specificaily acknowledges the deferred delivery
instructions and the usual payment terms apply, revenue is recognised when the customer takes litle
of the goods.

Consultancy and training revenues provided on a time and material basis are recognised when the
service has been performed. For services performed on a fixed price basis, revenue is recognised
propottionately to the percentage of planned costs incurred.

Rental payments are recognised in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreement.
Maintenance renewals are recognised over the period of which the maintenance contract covers.

Where a contract consists of various components that operate independently of each other, the
Company recognises revenue for each component as if it were one individual contract.

Operating leases: the Company as lessee

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

Research and development

in the research phase of an internal project it is not possibie to demonstrate that the project will generate
future economic benefits and hence all expenditure on research shall be recognised as an expense
when it is incurred. Intangible assets are recognised from the development phase of a project if and
only if certain specific criteria are met in order to demonstrate the asset will generate prababie future
economic benefils and that its cost can be reliably measured. The capitalised development costs are
subsequently amortised on a straight line basis over their useful economic lives. which range from 3 to
€ years.

if it is not possibie to distinguish between the research phase and the development- phase of an internal
project. the expenditure is treated as if it were all incurred in the research phase only.

Finance costs

Finance costs are charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the term of the debt using
the effective interest method so that the amount charged is at a constant rate on the carrying amount.
Issue costs are initially recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associsted capital instrument.

Pensions

Defined contribution pension plan

The Company cperates a defined contribution plan for ts employees. A defined contribution plan is a
pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. Once the
contributions have been paid the Company has no further payment obligations.

The contributions are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income when they
fall due. Amounts not paid are shows in accruals as a l:ability in the statement of financial position The
assets of the plan arg held separately from the Company in independently administered funds.
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Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises curreni and deferred tax. Tax 15 recognised in the statement of
comprehensive Income, except that a charge attributable to an item of income and expense recognised
as other comprehensive income or to an tem recognised directly in equity is also recognised i other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted
of substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and
generates income.

Deferred tax balances are recognised in respect of all iming differences that have originated but not
reversed by the Statement of Financial Position date. except that:

« The recognition of deferred tax assets 18 hmited to the extent that it is probabie that they will
be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits; and

s Any deferred tax balances are reversed if and when all conditions for retaining associaled tax
allowances have been met.

Deferred tax balances are not recognised in respect of permanent differences except in respect of
business combinations, whan deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the fair values of
assels acquired and the future tax deductions available for them and the differences between the fair
values of liabilities acquired and the amount that will be assessed for tax. Defarred tax is determined
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. After recognition, under the cost model. intangible
assets are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment under the cost model are stated at historical cost less accumulated
deprecialion and any accumulated impaimment losses. Histoncal cost includes expenditure that 1s
directly attributable io bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.

The Company adds to the camying amount of an item of property, plani and equipment the cost of
replacing part of such an item when that cost is incurred. if the replacement part is expected to provide
incramental future benefits to the Company. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss duning the period in which they are incurred.

Dapreciation is charged so as tc allocate the cost of assets less their residual value over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method.

Depreciation is provided on the following basis:

Office equipment - 20-25%
Computer equipment - 20-25%
Other fixed assets -33%
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted
praspactively if appropriate, or if there is an indication of a significant change since the Iast reporting
date,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assels that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are assessed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication that the assets are impaired. Where there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired, the carrying value of the asset (or cash-gensrating unit to which the asset has been
allocated) is tested for impairment. Animpairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount i8 the higher of an asset’s
{or CGU's) fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately idantifiable cash flows {CGUs).
Non-financial assets that have been previousily impaired are reviewed at each reporting date to assess
whether there is any indication that the impairment losses recognised in prior pericds may no longer
exist or may have decreased.

Valuation of investments
Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less accumulated impairment.
Inventories

Inventories are staled at the lower of cost and nel realisable value, being the estimated selling price
less costs to complete and sell. Cost is based on the cost of purchase on a first in, first out basis. Work
in progress and finished goods include labour and attributable overheads.

At each raporting date, inventories are assassed for impairment. If inventory is impaired. the carrying
amount is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and s&ll. Tha mpairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Receivables

Short term receivables are measured at transaction price, tess any impairment. Loans receivables are
measured inftially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are measured subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. less any impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayabie without penalty
on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in no
more than three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible 10 known amounts
of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
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Payabies

Payables are cbligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers.

Payables are racognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amorlised cost using the
effective interest method.

Dividends

Equity dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. Interim equity dividends are
recognised when paid. Final equity dividends are recognised when approved by the shareholders at an
annual general meeting
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1

Judgments in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statemants required management to make judgements,
estimates and assumnptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reperted
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual resulls may differ from the
estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Estimates are
based on historical experience and other assumptions that are considered reasonable in the
circumstances. The actual amount of values may vary in certain instances from the
assumption and estimates made. Changes will be recorded, with corresponding effect in the
statement of comprehensive income, when, and if, better information is obtained.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have the most sighificant
effect on recognifion and measuremant of assets, liabilities, incoma and expenses is provided
below:

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based on forecasts of future taxabie profit. The
measurement of future profit for the purposes of determining whether or not to recognise
defetred tax assets depends on many factors, including the Company’s ability to generate
such profits and the implementation of effective tax planning strategies. The occumrence or
non-occurrence of such events in the future may lead to significant changes to the
measurement of deferred tax assets.

In recognising provisions, the company evaluates the extent to which it is possible that it has
incurred a legal or constructive obligation in respect of past events and the probability that
there will be an outflow of benefits as a result, The judgements used to recognise provisions
are based on currently known factors which may vary over time, resulting in changes in the
measurement of recorded amounts as compared to initial estimates.

Managemaent estimate that net realisable values of inventory, taking into account the most
reliable avidence at each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventories may be
affected by future technology or cther market driven changes that may reduce future selling
prices.

The Company also makes an estimate of the recoverable value of investments, When
assessing impairment of invesiments, management review discounted future cashflows
forecasts along with the current financial position and industry knowledge.

The Company makes an estimate of the recoverable value of trade and other receivables.
When assessing impairment of trade and other receivables, management considers factors
including the credit rating of the receivable, the aging profile of receivables and histarical
experience. See note 5 for the net carrying amount of the receivables.
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Property, plant and equipment

Cost
As at 1 January 2018
Additions

As at 31 December 2018
Depreciation

As at 1 January 2018
Charge for the period

As at 31 December 2018

Net book value
As at 31 December 2018

As at 31 December 2017

Other intanglble assets

Cost
As at 1 January ang 31
December 2018

Depreciation
As at 1 January 2018
Charge for the period

As at 31 December 2018

Net book value
As at 31 December 2018

As at 31 December 2017

Computer Hardware
equipment Total
£ £ £
3,942 651 4,593
3078 590 3,668
7,020 1,241 8.261
2,854 550 3.404
4,166 691 4,857
7.020 1241 8,261
1,088 10 1,189
Customer
relationships Development Total
£ £ £
525.444 16.000 540.444
459,888 - 489,998
35,446 15,000 50,446
525 444 15,000 540,444
15.000 50,446

35.446
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4

investments

Cost

As at 1 January 2018
Additions

Revaluations

As at 31 December 2018

Net book value
As at 31 December 2018

As at 31 December 2017

Subsidiaries

Investments
in subsidiary
entities

£

49,328,279
19,567,793
404,845

69,300,917

69,300,917
48,292,707

Alt companies listed below are owned by the Company and alt interests are in the ordinary
share capital, except where otherwise indicated. All subsidiaries have been consolidated.

The Company holds a majority of the voting rights of the following undertakings:

Entity

XN Leisure Systems Limited
Fitronics Limited

WebCreative UK Limited

AMI Education Solutions Limited
Tucasi Limited

London & Zurich Limited

tondon & Zurich Finance Limited
Card Management Services Limited
Metalogic Holdings Limited
Metalogic Limited

Cash Registers (Buccleuch) Limited
CRB Solutions Limited

EZ-Runner Systems Limited

PCI Systems Limited

Veia Software Spain, S.L.U.
Juniper Consuting, S.L.

Juniper S A.S

Salon Software Solutions Limited
Cunningham Cash Registers
Limited

Jonas Event Technology Limited
Show Data Systems Limited
interchange Communications
Limited

FashionMaster Limited

Invicta Business Machines Limited
ePOS Development Limited
Stockmaster Metals Limited

Country of
incorporation

UK
Spain
Spain
Columbia
UK

UK

UK
UK
UK

UK
UK
UK
UK

Interest

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

Holding

Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
Indirect
Indirect
Direct

Indirect.

Direct
Indirect
Direct
Direct
Direct
Inglirect
Indirect
Direct
Direct

Direct
Indirect
Indirect

Direct

Indirect
Indirect
Indirect

Address (see
below for full)
Warwick Road
Monmouth Place
Gladstone House
Gladstone House
Wessex House
The Courtyard
The Courtyard
The Courtyard
Gladstone House
Gladstone House
Dryden Road
Dryden Road
Gladstone House
Pci House

Gremi Fustars
Gremi Fustaers
Carrera

Warwick Road
Headley
Technology Park
Gladstone House
Gladstone House
Gladstone House

Gladstone House
Gladstone House
Gladstone House
Gladstone House
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5 Subsidiaries (continued)

Entity Country of Intarest  Holding Address (see
incorporation below for full}

MCR Enterprise Solutions Limited UK 100% Direct  High View Close

MCR Syslems Limiled UK 100% Indirect Vantage House

Blayhall Marine Limited UK 100% Direct  Warwick Road

Havenstar MMS Limited UK 100% Indirect Warwick Road

Havenstar Software Solutions UK 100% Indirect Warwick Road

Limited

Star Marina Solutions LLC USA 100% Indirect 'W.Bryn Mawr

Greycon Limited UK 100% Diract  Calico House

Greycon Software SA Uruguay 100% Indirect  Javier de Viana

Greycon Software Support & Greece 100% Indirect Karneadou

Development MEPE

Shandong Greycon Software China 100% Indirect Suite 905

Technology Limited

Minted Box Education Limited UK 100% Direct  Wessex House

Address Full acldress

Wanrwick Road Unit 5, 707 Warwick Road Top Floor, Warwick Road,
Solihull, B91 3DA,

Monmouth Place 18 Monmouth Place, Bath, BA1 2AY

Gladstone House Gladstone House, Hithercroft Road, Wallingford,
Oxfordshire, England, OX10 9BT

Wessex House Wessex House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh.
Hampshire. SO50 9FD

The Courtyard Unit 5, The Courtyard, 707 Warwick Road. Solihull,
BS1 3DA

Dryden Road 32 Dryden Road. Units 1-9, Loanhead, Bilston Gien.
EH20 9L.Z

Pci House Pci House Unit 1 Woodseats Close, Woodseats Close,
Sheffield, S. Yorkshire, 58 0TB

Headiey Technology Park Headley Technology Park, Middle Lane Wythall,
Birmingham, Warwickshire, B38 0DS

High View Close 14 High View Close, Leicester, LE4 9LJ

Vantage House Vantage House, Vantage Park, Leicester, LE4 9LJ

Calico House 7 Calico House, Piantation Wharf, York Road, London,
SW11 3TN

W.Bryn Mawr 8870 W.Bryn Mawr, Suite 1300. Chicago, IL 60631,
United Sates of America

Javier de Viana Javier de Viana 2384, Montevideo, Uruguary, CP
11200

Karneadou Karneadou 15, Kolonaki, Athens, 106 75

Suite 905 Suite 905, Financial Center B. East Sheng Cheng
Road, Shouguang City, Shandong, 262700, China

Gremi Fusters Gremi Fusters 33, Oficina 302, 07009 Palma de
Mallorca, Spain

Carrera Carrera 100 # 5-169, Torre Oasis, Piso 7, Oficinas 712

- 713, Cali, Colombia
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5 Subslidiaries (continued)
Parent company guarantee

The following subsidiary companies are exempt from the requirements under the Companies
Act 2006 relating to the audit of financial statements under section 479A of that Act. Jonas
Computing {UK) Limited has provided a parent company guarantee over the liabilities of each
of these subsidiary companies, pursuant to section 479C of the Companies Act 2006.

Company name Company number
XN Leisure Systems Limited 05961469
Fitronics Limited 04530820
WebCreative UK Limited 03907760
AMI Education Solutions Limited 02613240
Tucasi Limited 05060375
London & Zurich Limited 03279428
Card Management Services Limited 03206476
Metalogic Holdings Limited 06329035
Metalogic Limited 02648289
Cash Registers (Buccleuch) Limited SCO044087
CRB Solutions Limited SC200096
PCI Systems Limited 03336338
Salon Software Solutions Limited 08930241
Cunningham Cash Registers Limited 01221095
Jonas Event Technology Limited 06565756
Show Data Systems Limited 07864900
Interchange Communications Limited 02581005
FashionMaster Limited 08264830
Invicta Business Machines Limited 01035809
Stockmaster Metals Limited 03943927
MCR Enterprise Seiutions Linited 08242670
MCR Systems Limited 01349701
Havenstar MMS Limited 09296184
EZ-Runner Systems Limited 07034097
Minted Box Education Limitad 08704772
8 Inventories 2018 2017
£ £
Work in progress §.148 -
Finished goods and goods for resale 13,902 14,560
18.050 14,560
7 Trade and other receivables 2018 2017
£ £
Trade receivables 1211526 302,354
Amounts due from fellow group undertakings 36.825 623 23,816,875
Prepayments and accrued income 157.699 38,028
Other receivables 769,483 653,663
Deferred taxation 3,604 128 526
39.067 945 24.939 447

The amounts due from fellow group undenzakings are unsecured and are repayable on demand.
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8

10

t1

Cash and cash equivalents 2018 2017
£ £
Cash at bank and in hand 797 563 622,216
Trade and other payables: amounts falling due
within one year 2018 2017
£ £
Trade payables 13.267 19,475
Amounts due to fellow group undertakings 60,143,460 40,714,460
Other tax and social securty 25,811 43,039
Other payables - Earnout Liability 11,897,639 4,377,751
Accrued liabilities 694,053 180,336
72,774,230 45,335,061

The amounts due to fellow group undenakings are unsecured and are repayable on demand.

Trade and other payables: amounts falling due
after more than one year 2018 2017

£ £
Amounts due 1o fellow group undertakings

4.680.384 4,680.384

During January 2015 Jonas Computing (UK) Ltd entered in to 3 loan agreements with CSI
Luxembourg for; £1,.824,840, £1,875,000 and £950,160. The loans were later assigned from
Jonas Computing (UK) Limited to Consteflation Software Holdco Ltd, however Jonas
Computing (UK) Ltd is still required to remit interest at 8% to Constellation Sofiware Holdco
Ltd, in line with the agreements. Repayment is due on 1st Oclober 2021, 14th August 2021
and 10th December 2021, respectively.

Deferred tax
The movement on the deferred income tax account is as shown below:

Assets

£

As at 1 January 2018 128,528

Debit to profit and loss {124 .822)

As at 31 December 2018 3.604
The deferred tax asset is made up as follows.

2018 2017

£ £

Decelerated capital aliowances 418 326

Retirement benefit obligations {622) 195

Tax insses carried forward 3.808 128,005

As at 31 December 2018 3.604 128,526
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12

13

14

15

16

Share capital 2018 2017
£ £

Allotted, called up and fully paid

1 Ordinary share of £1 1 1

The Ordinary shares have aftached to them full voting. dividend and capital distribution
{including on winding up) rights; they do not confer any rights of redemption.

Reserves

Share promium account
The share premium account includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any
transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from share premium.

Capital contribution
The capital contribution reserve includes additional capital received on existing issue of share
capital.

Retained earnings
Retained earnings include cumulative profit and loss net of distributions to owners.

Contingent liabillties

In the event that bank indebtedness arises in the uitimate parent undertaking. Consteliation
Software Inc., it is secured by means of an unlimited guarantes and debenture over the assets
of the Company and cther group underiakings.

Pension commitments

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Company in an independently administered fund. The
pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the Company to the fund and
amounted to £15,145 (2017: £13,044). Contributions totalling £nil (2017: £1.249) were payable
to the fund at the end of the year end date.

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases

The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease agreements
are as follows-

2018 2017
£ £

Amounts due’
Within one year - 484
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17

18

Related party transactions

As permitted by FRS 101, related party transactions with wholly owned members of
Constellation Software Inc. have not been disclosed.

Controlling party

The largest and smallest group in which the results are consolidated is thal headed by
Constellation Software Inc. Constellation Software inc. is also the uitimate controlling part of
the Company. The consolidated accounts of Constellahion Software Inc. are available 10 the
public and may be obtained from Gary Jonas Gomputing Ltd, 8133 Warden Ave, Suile 400,
Markham, Onlario, Canada, L6G 183,
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